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Revision 8 

All the original documents shown in this booklet plus many more reside in a locked fireproof file 

cabinet in the BLCA Club House. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

This booklet assembled by Larry McKeough January 2024 
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The Burden Lake Preservation Corp. 

First, the pre-cursor to the Burden Lake Preservation Corporation 

which begins with the  Wynantskill Association. 

(The Hart Cluett museum in Troy has 8 boxes of what's left of the original Wynantskill (improvement) Association 

documents which can be view with an appointment.) 

 

The Wynants Kill Creek is 14.1 miles long and drops a total of 850’ from Glass Lake down to the Hudson River making it 

the ideal candidate for water powered mills. 

• 1656- First mill is built on the Wynants Kill. 

• 1768 – first grist mill is built on the Wynants Kill in Sand Lake, not far from present day Burden Lake. 

• 1788- The Patroon, Stephen Van Rensselaer III begins renting “Mill Sites” along the Wynants Kill. Eventually they 

are called “water Privilege “ (WP) Sites” and there is a total of 19 available sites along the entire length of the 

Wynants Kill.  

• 1829-  Thirteen mill owners form the Wynants Kill Association to find ways to control the water shed of the 

Wynants Kill Creek and to control the Lakes that discharge into the Creek (Glass, Crooked, Sand Lake, Reichards 

Lake, and Snyders Lake. Burden Lake didn’t exist yet)  to benefit the mill owners.  

• 1829- Wynantskill Association installs the first dam on Sand Lake (now called Crystal Lake). Raises the water 1 

foot. 

• 1831- Builds the first Dam to raise Martin’s Lake 18” 

• 1841- Wynantskill Association votes to purchase farmlands to be flooded in the Martin’s Lake vicinity and 

authorizes $12,000 to purchase the lands and build dams and canals to raise the lake. Carmichael’s pond will be 

part of the canal. 

• 1841- Wynants Kill assoc. makes agreement to build a dam and to raise Sand Lake( now Crystal Lake) 20” higher 

than the old high-water mark. They have the right to raise a gate and control the water flow.  

• 1842- Wynants Kill Assoc builds dam on Glass Lake to retain the water. 

• 1842-  There are 22 members of the Association, all mill owners. 

• 1845- Installs dam at Crooked Lake to control the out flow 

• 1848 – Changes name to Wynantskill Improvement Association (WIA) 

• 1859- WIA approves expenditure of $4500 to purchase Gass Lake and build a dam to raise the lake 3’ above the 

old high-water mark. Also to purchase land in between Glass & Crooked Lake to be sufficiently cleaned to 

increase water flow from Crooked Lake into Glass Lake 

• 1861- WIA starts planning the dam system at what will become Burden Lake. Hires Burton Thomas to design the 

new dam system. 

• 1863 – Construction of the new dam system begins 
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• 1865- Flooding of Martin’s Lake and the valley begins. 

• 1866- Martin’s Lake is raised anoter 8’ and now is named Burden Lake. 

• 1890- Steam power is becoming popular to power the successful mills 

• 1892- Electric Motors are now becoming popular to run the successful mills 

• 1901 – Wynantskill Association becomes a NYS Corporation changing name to Wynantskill Improvement 

Association 

• From the 1890’s thru the 1945, the watered power mills are slowly disappearing. 

• 1956 – only two members of the WIA are left. They were Portec and Republic Steel both in Troy. They only use 

the water for cooling purposes. 

• 1972- Republic Steel closes leaving Portec as the only standing member of the WIA. 

• Portec closed the Troy plant in 1989.  

• 1990- Portec corporate wants to divest itself of the tax burden and liability of owning the bottoms of the lakes.  

•  Mid 1990’s Portec tries to sell off the bottom of the Glass, Crooked, Crystal and Burden Lake. Lucky for us, after  

about a year of marketing, they realize no one wants to touch it. It’s to complicated and wouldn’t make a good 

investment for any other firm. 

• Mar 12, 1998 — Portec Inc. agreed to be acquired by J Richard Industries and must clean up their real-estate 

holdings in NY. 

• 11/19/1998 -7 people from Glass Lake create the Glass Lake Preservation Corp.(GLPC), and the Four Lakes 

Preservation Corporation (4 Lakes).  GLPC is the sole member of the 4 Lakes. GLPC oversees Glass Lake while 4 

Lakes is to oversee the WIA assets, specifically the bottom of Glass, Crooked, Crystal, and Burden Lakes.  

• 11/30/1998 Portec allows the 4 Lakes to become a member of WIA in an agreement signed by Jeffery Lawrence 

of 4 lakes, Robert Eckart of GLPC and John Cooper of Portec. This agreement, In essence, made the 7 people of 

the GLPC members of the WIA. The GLPC agrees to indemnify Portec forever.  

• 11/30/1998 – The agreement stipulates that 4 Lakes must stay in existence for 7 years.  

• 11/30/1998-  The agreement allows Portec to resign from the WIA.  

• 3/29/1999-  WIA sells the bottom of Glass Lake to the GLPC including flooding rights for $10, Signed by Jeffery 

Lawrence (presumably as president of the WIA),  basically moving the asset from WIA to GLPC. 

• About this time, Paul Ashline, Mark Cioffi, Joe Johnson, Wayne Pratt, Frank Maier and Robert Maier (all from 

Burden Lake) become members of the 4 Lakes with Paul as President.  (unsure of date) 

• 7/21/1999 – 7 members of 4 Lakes terminate their membership. Signed by Jeffery Lawrence for 4 lakes and Paul 

Ashline as an individual. 

• 7/21/99- Paul Ashline  definitely becomes a member of the 4 Lakes indemnifying 4 Lakes forever and 

guaranteeing to keep the 4 Lakes in existence for at least 7 years from 11/30/1998 signed by Jeffery Lawrence for 

4 Lakes and Paul Ashline with no title. 

• About this time we believe Paul Ashline, Mark Cioffi, Joe Johnson, Wayne Pratt, Frank Maier and Robert Maier all 

become members of the WIA at this time with Paul as president. (unsure of date) 
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• 1/10/2000 - the Burden Lake Preservation Corp (BLPC) is incorporated,   with Paul Ashline, Mark Cioffi, Joe 

Johnson, Wayne Pratt, Frank Maier and Robert Maier as members of the BLPC, Paul as President.  These men 

started the BLPC to protect Burden Lake from any outside entity possibly getting control over Burden Lake.   

• 5/15/2001- WIA (Paul Ashline as president) Sells the bottom of Burden Lake (based on tax maps only) to the 

Burden Lake Preservation Corp. for $1. Basically, moving the asset from WIA to the BLPC. Not sure how or when 

Paul became president of the WIA. The purchase is solely based on tax parcels. 

• 6/12/2002- The BLPC (Paul Ashline as president) sells off parcels not related to the lake bottoms, sells tax parcel 

# 158.4-5-49 Stephen Senrick 

• 6/14/2002- The BLPC (Paul Ashline as President) sells tax parcel 158.4-5-8 to Jean & Joe DiMeo.    

• 7/17/2002- Four Lakes and WIA (Paul as president of both) sell the bottom of Crystal Lake (tax parcels plus some 

deeds) to the Crystal Lake Improvement Association. Includes flooding rights for $600 

• 9/5/2003 – WIA and the Four Lakes Preservation Corp (Paul as president of both) sells the bottom of Crooked 

Lake ( tax parcel 159.3-4) to the Crooked Lake Improvement Association for $600.00. 

• We believe on 12/1/2005- The members of the 4 Lakes and WIA terminate their memberships and 

disillusionment will come next ( we have no proof of this) 

• That concludes what happened to the Wynantskill (Improvement) Association. 

 

 

In 1999 Paul Ashline, Mark Cioffi, and Robert Maier from the 3rd. Lake and members of the BLIA,  and Joe Johnson, 

Wayne Pratt, and Frank Maier from the 1st/2nd Lake and members of the BLA  got together to investigate what to do 

about the ownership of the bottom of Burden Lake. At that time Portec had already made their deal with the people 

on Glass Lake to take over ownership of Glass, Crooked, Crystal and Burden Lake. Of course, Glass Lake people (GLPC) 

only really wanted ownership of Glass Lake. The 4 Lakes Preservation Corp. had approached the BLIA and the BLA to 

see if they would take ownership of Burden Lake and both declined worried about liability issues. 

The Glass Lake people (GLPC) only wanted the bottom of their lake, The 4 Lakes wanted the other lakes to assume 

responsibility for their own lakes. they claimed if the other Associations wouldn’t take over the bottom of their own 

lakes, they would approach the Towns, County & State to see if they would take over Crooked, Crystal and Burden 

Lake. These 6 men from Burden Lake’s only concern, was to  preserve and keep the control of Burden Lake,` with 

Burden Lake, and not let it get into an outsider’s hands. Lucky for us, they decided to form the BLPC and acquire the 

bottom of our lake! Another goal was to keep Burden Lake as one complete body of water and to begin to unite the 

two associations. These 6 founding members of the BLPC graciously paid property and school taxes and other 

expenses on the Lake bottoms  for many years paying out of their own pockets.  Who knows what Burden Lake might 

have become if these 6 men hadn’t done what they dd! Burden Lakers owe them a huge gratitude of thanks!! 
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The Burden Lake Preservation Corp. 

• Incorporated 1/10/2000 under section 402 as a not-for-profit Type B corporation  

• 4/5/2022 Became a 501(c) (3) Corporation 

• Last tax return filed for fiscal year- 2022 

• Mission Statement 

The mission of the Burden Lake Preservation Corporation is to protect, promote and preserve the Burden Lakes 
and their surroundings and to enhance the quality of water, shoreline, or other aspects of lake use. The Association 
will protect, promote, and educate regarding safety ecology  geography recreation and aesthetics of Burden Lakes for 
present and future generations. 

 

• By Laws Up-Dated 5/26/22 

• Structure – Board of Directors consisting of:  

Six permanent Members, 3 from the 3rd Lake, and 3 from the 1st. and 2nd. Lakes.   

Six rotating Members, 3 appointed by the BLA and 3 appointed by the BLCA 

As of 1/30/2024 BLPC Board of Directors  

Permanent Members    Rotating Members 

Wayne Pratt- President    Joe Morrissey (BLA) 

Larry McKeough- Vice President   Lisa Thorn (BLA) 

Joe Johnson     Theresa Flynn (BLA -Secretary) 

Dan Hogarty     Wendy Will (BLCA) 

Paul Ashline - Treasure    Steve Scarlata (BLCA) 

Frank Maier     Walt VanDeLoo (BLCA) 

• MEMBERSHIP - The permanent BLPC Board members retain 50% Membership and the BLA and BLCA each retain 

25% Membership. 

• Contact – Wayne Pratt - 518-727-4218   Larry McKeough  845-705-0712 

• Web Site – None, Visit your associations page  

• FaceBook- None, Visit your associations page 

• Dues $0 
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History of BLPC DEED 

1) On 5/15/2001 the BLPC purchased the bottom of the Burden Lakes for $1.00 from the Wynantskill    
Improvement Association.  Recorded at the County on 7/9/2001. The conveyance description is as follows: 
" All  Those certain tracks pieces or parcels of land with the improvements therein situate lying in and being in 
the Town of Sand Lake, County of Rensselaer and state of New York and shown as Rensselaer County real 
property tax map numbers 158.4-5-8, 158.4-5-49, 169.00-4-1 and 169.00-3-1. The tax map ties 169.00 to 158.00 

 
Also  All That certain tract piece or parcel of land with the improvements thereon situate lying and being in 

 the Town of Nassau, County of Rensselaer and state of New York and shown as Rensselaer County real property 

 tax map number 169.00-6-1. 

The conveyance of these premises does not constitute the conveyance of all or substantially all of the  
assets of the corporation." 

No where does the deed mention- dams, dikes, berms, diversion dams, weirs, valves etc. 

The BLPC sells off two parcels unrelated to the lake bottom as follows; 

They sold 158.4-5-49 to Stephen Senrick on 6/12/2002, and 158.4-5-8 to Jean & Joseph DiMeo 6/14/2002. 

The BLPC retains the other three tax parcels which are: 

169.00-4-1 - Southern half of the 2nd. Lake, and the Northern 1/3 of the 3rd. Lake. (The tax maps say                

"see section 158.00 for remainder of parcel 169.00-4-1) 

158.00 - Northern part of 2nd. Lake, plus the whole of the 1st Lake, plus property on the west side of the Dam 

under Burden Lake Road. This section Includes about 1/2 of the Berm, 1/2 of the canal, and 1/2 of the pond.  

 169.00-3-1- Brook Spring Cove on the 3rd. Lake 

 169.00-6-1 - Southern 2/3 of the 3rd Lake in the Town of Nassau. 

2) As a matter of record, while negotiating with the developer of Totem Lodge, American Land & Lakes,            

(AL&L). The BLCA had to prove that the BLPC owned the bottom of the lakes up to the  high-water mark. The 

BLCA also needed to prove that the BLPC owned Parcel A where AL&L wanted to install a boat launch for the 

Woods.  This was a costly process for the BLCA. The BLPC agreed that if the BLCA invested the funds to prove the 

BLPC owned to the high-water mark and owned Parcel A, the BLPC would allow the BLCA to own Parcel A.  

As it turned out the BLCA was able to prove ownership back to Frederick Batzolt in 1866. The BLPC signed          

an agreement allowing AL&L to issue a Quit Claim Deed to Parcel A in the BLCA's Name. That agreement           

was signed by Mark Cioffi, president of the BLPC and Steve Quillinan, President of the BLCA 1/19/22.     

Parcel A had an easement on it for the Burden Lake Golf Course to have pipes to draw water for irrigation. Turns 

out David Schoenholt (who thought he owned the parcel in 1965) granted the easement on property        he did 

not own. After extensive negotiations, on 9/16/23 the owner of the Golf Course, Tom Choquette,       agreed to a  

new easement giving him rights and which had some protection language in it for Burden Lake. This was a 

lengthy process, but new Quit Claim deeds were drawn up on 1/17/2024 and as I write this, just need to be 

signed by the golf course and will be filed with the County thereafter.  

3.)  The Weir, around 2020, the BLPC found out from the DEC that we did not own the land the Weir was on, and we 

didn't own about 1/2 of the berm or 1/2 of the canal/pond. Two other individuals owned that land.  The BLPC 

was applying for grants to try to get funding to make the necessary repairs to the Dam System and knew we 

needed to own the Weir and surrounding property. Turns out there were already two existing old easements on 

both properties and around the Weir, but we really needed more than that. Thanks to Mark Cioffi, negotiations 
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began with the two parties who did own the Weir, Alger's and Densmore's. Negotiations were completed in the 

fall of 2022 and on 1/1/23 and 2/21/23, both parcels were donated to the BLPC. The Alger's donated a .96 Acre 

lot and the Densmore's a 2.64 Acre lot.  New deeds were filed with the County at the same time. 

 

After this acquisition, the BLPC owned the bottom of the Lakes, the full berm, the 

whole canal and pond, and the Weir and enough land to build a construction 

road from Burden Lake Road to the Weir.   
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BLPC Deed for the bottom of the Lakes 
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Parcel A Information 
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New Deed for Parcel A with new Easement  
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2024 New Golf course Easement. 
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Deeds for Weir 
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Yellow Previously owned by BLPC 

Blue- Land donated by Densmore’s 

Red- Land donated by Alger 
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Map shows older Easements to and around Weir. 
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The Burden Lake Preservation Corp. 

Corporate papers 
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